
         

 

 

CAPTAIN’S KEY 
DEPENDENT DISTRICT 

 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

APRIL 9, 2024 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.captainskeydd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
The Oaks Center at 2501A 

Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens 
Florida 33410 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

April 9, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
            

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. February 13, 2024 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………….Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Update on Gate Painting 

2. Update on Lighting 

3. Update on Landscaping 

4. Update on Sprinklers 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2024-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Proposed Budget…...Page 5 

2. Discussion Regarding Required Ethics Training………………………………………………Page 0 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report………………………………………………………………………………..Page 0 

2. Consider Invoices……………………………………………………………………………....Page 0 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 13, 2024 
 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Jason Pierman called the February 13, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the 
Captain’s Key Dependent District (the “District”) to order at 6:06 p.m. at The Oaks Center located at 
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Pierman presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Palm Beach Daily Business Review on September 29, 2023, as part of the District’s 
Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule,  as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Mr. Pierman determined that the attendance of Chairman John Banister and Supervisors Yefry Jave 
and Judge Moss constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting.   
 
Staff in attendance included:  District Manager Jason Pierman and Assistant District Manager James 
Candela, both of Special District Services, Inc. 
 
Also present were the following residents:  Karen Noga and Gretta Curry. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that Mr. Jones could not attend but had advised that the gate painting had been 
deferred from last year, and 3 of the 4 entry bulbs above the sign were out.   
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  October 30, 2023, Special Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the minutes of the October 30, 2023, Special Board Meeting for approval.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Jave seconded by Mr. Banister approving the minutes of the October 30, 
2023, Special Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Annexation into the Town of Juno Beach 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Mr. Banister noted that he and Trey had met with the Town and everything should be effective on 
November 23, 2024.  Mr. Pierman noted that he had spoken with the Juno Beach Police Chief, and 
that Juno Beach Police have already started patrolling the neighborhood. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Front Entry Lighting 
 
Mr. Banister explained that Mr. Salour had requested additional lighting along the sidewalks, after 
nearly hitting a jogger.  Mr. Pierman noted that he would reach out to Gilbert Electric to see what 
they suggest be added, as well as have them do a check of all lighting at the entrance.   
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Landscaping 
 
Mr. Pierman noted that the owner of PowerPlant had passed away, and that the company had been 
sold to Gras Lawn.  Following discussion, the Board requested that Ms. Noga, as the landscaping 
liaison, meet onsite with Mr. Pierman and the new landscape team to determine what needs to be 
done, including fertilization, potential Ficus replacement, and additional landscaping materials. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Moss, seconded by Mr. Banister, and unanimously passed authorizing a 
not-to-exceed amount of $5,000 for additional landscaping, per Ms. Noga’s recommendations. 
 
Mr. Pierman noted that there was already a line item in the budget for tree trimming, so the trimming 
could move forward at Ms. Noga’s direction, as landscaping liaison.   
 
The Board also requested that the irrigation be checked.   
 
 3.  Consider Call Box Camera Replacement Proposal 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that the call box camera was working only intermittently and presented a 
proposal from Victory Access Control to replace it at a cost of $1,411.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Jave, seconded by Mr. Banister and passed unanimously approving the 
call box camera replacement from Victory Access Control at the cost of $1,411, as presented. 
 
 4.  Discussion Regarding Gate Painting 
 
Mr. Pierman restated Mr. Jones’ concern about the gate painting.  Mr. Moss agrees to research the 
item and get proposals.   
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

1.  Financial Report 
 
 2.  Consider Invoices 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Pierman provided an overview of how things would run if the POA engaged a management 
company and the District entered into a maintenance agreement with the POA.  He noted that this 
format was in place with several districts he manages, and that he had provided Mr. Mahoney with a 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

draft agreement as an example, which assigns District maintenance responsibilities for the gate, 
landscaping, roads, and drainage to the POA, but that any agreement would need to be approved by 
District Counsel before moving forward.  To date, District Counsel has only been asked to opine on 
the idea as a concept.   
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Banister, 
seconded by Mr. Moss and unanimously passed adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 6:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 
 

Page 4



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED 
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Captain’s Key Dependent 
District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a Proposed 
Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for       , 2024 
at 6:00 p.m. in the Oaks Center, 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410, for the 
purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 9th day of April, 2024. 
 

 
ATTEST: CAPTAIN’S KEY  
 DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 5



  Captain's Key
 Dependent District

  Proposed Budget For
  Fiscal Year 2024/2025

    October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



The Oaks Center · 2501A Burns Road · Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410-5204                o: 561.630.4922 · f: 561.630.4923 · www.sdsinc.org 
Additional Offices: Miami · Bonita Springs · Tradition · West Villages · Ave Maria  

 

 

 

Ethics Training  
 
Beginning in 2024, District Supervisors are required to complete four (4) hours of ethics 
training annually.  Below are links to two training sessions that will, upon completion, 
satisfy the training requirement.  Beginning with the 2024 Form 1, District Supervisors 
will be required to confirm that they have completed the training each year.   
 

 State Ethics Laws for Constitutional Officers & Elected Municipal Officers 
o https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=U8JktIMKzyI 

 Public Meetings and Public Records Law 
o https://www.myfloridalegal.com/sites/default/files/Full%2520audio%25

202018%5B2%5D.mp3 
 
Both links can be found on SDS’ website, at www.sdsinc.org/links.   
 
 
The Florida Association of Special Districts (FASD) also offers a training option through 
Florida State University’s Florida Institute of Government.  If your special district is a 
member of FASD, the cost for this special district-specific ethics training is $49.00 for 
each district official. 
 
If your special district is NOT a member of FASD, the cost for this special district-specific 
ethics training is $79.00 for each district official. 
 
Information on the FASD course can be found at https://www.fasd.com/ethics-for-
special-districts.  

Page 11



 Captain's Key
Dependent District

   Financial Report For
February 2024

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



 11:02 AM
 04/02/24
 Accrual Basis

 Captain's Key Dependent District

 Check Register
 As of April 2, 2024

Date Num Name Memo Credit

1072 · South State bank account

01/04/2024 Seacoast 416.29

01/05/2024 Comcast 208.40

01/05/2024 FPL 67.11

01/05/2024 Greentone 79.00

01/05/2024 Special District Services 2,020.00

01/05/2024 Victory Access Control 832.00

02/01/2024 Seacoast 472.81

02/02/2024 Comcast 292.16

02/02/2024 FPL 67.31

02/02/2024 Frontsteps 330.75

02/02/2024 Gras 1,150.00

02/02/2024 Greentone 79.00

02/02/2024 Special District Services 2,019.40

02/20/2024 DoorKing 263.45

02/21/2024 Gras 1,150.00

03/01/2024 Seacoast 439.84

03/04/2024 Only Trees 1,650.00

03/04/2024 Comcast 298.35

03/04/2024 FPL 73.45

03/04/2024 Frontsteps 347.28

03/04/2024 Greentone 79.00

03/04/2024 Special District Services 2,017.51

03/04/2024 Victory Access Control 371.51

04/01/2024 Seacoast 402.16

04/02/2024 Comcast 298.35

04/02/2024 FPL 65.40

04/02/2024 Frontsteps 347.28

04/02/2024 Greentone 79.00

04/02/2024 Higgins Engineering 1,000.00

04/02/2024 Special District Services 2,048.70

04/02/2024 Victory Access Control 135.00

1072 · South State bank account 19,100.51

TOTAL 19,100.51

 Page 1 of 1Page 16


	Captain's Key Dependent District - March 12, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	February 13, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Proposed Budget
	Discussion Regarding Required Ethics Training
	Financial Report
	Consider Invoices




